
 

 

NORTH RIDGEVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

FINANCE COMMITTEE  

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD  

MARCH 18, 2019 

 

To Order: 
Chairman Martin DeVries called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Council 

Chambers at North Ridgeville City Hall, 7307 Avon Belden Road. 

 

Attendance: 

In attendance were Committee members Dennis Boose, Bruce Abens and Chairman 

Martin DeVries. 

 

Also in attendance were Mayor David Gillock, President Kevin Corcoran, Assistant 

Clerk of Council Tara Peet, Auditor Jeff Wilcheck, Fire Chief John Reese, Councilman 

Bob Chapek, Councilwoman Michelle Hung and Clerk of Council Nancy Linden. 

 

Minutes: 

Chairman DeVries asked for any corrections to the minutes from February 25, 2019. No 

discussion was offered.  The minutes stand approved as submitted. 

 

Discussion regarding the purchase of a ladder and a pumper truck for Fire: 

Chairman DeVries stated the meeting was called to discuss how the City will purchase a 

new ladder and pumper truck for the Fire Department.  He noted they asked for options to 

be presented to the Finance Committee by the Auditor. 

 

Auditor Wilcheck provided four options for purchasing the trucks.  He noted option one 

is not really an option as it provides no purchases.  He stated option two is the purchase 

of both trucks by transferring $500,000 from the General Fund and issuing bonds now for 

$1 million.  He stated that option three is the purchase of both trucks by transferring 

$500,000 from the General Fund and issuing notes this year, then rolling them over in 

2020 and going to bonds in 2021 with another issue.  He stated that option four is 

transferring $1 million from the General Fund and issuing $500,000 through bonds or 

notes.   

 

Auditor Wilcheck stated he worked with bond counsel and provided updated spread 

sheets which forecasted income tax revenue to pay debt until 2024 (see attached). 

He stated the target he is trying to stay at is around the five percent level for income tax.  

Auditor Wilcheck stated the Lear Nagle bonds will be issued this year.   

 

Auditor Wilcheck thought option three was the best option.  He felt it gives the City time 

to see how 2019 plays out.  He noted it gives the City the option to transfer money and 

pay down notes if the City has the money.  The notes can be paid off before the City 

bonds if income tax collections look good.  Auditor Wilcheck stated there is three 

quarters of a million coming back to the General Fund from the ODNR grant.   

Chairman DeVries asked which option is the most time sensitive. 



03.18.2019 Finance minutes   2 

 

 

Auditor Wilcheck stated option two.  The ordinance would need to be adopted on April 1. 

 

Chairman DeVries asked if notes were a five year term and then they can be turned into 

bonds later which go out ten years. 

 

Auditor Wilcheck stated yes. 

 

Chairman DeVries asked if the debt service accounted for the $500,000 transferred out of 

General Fund to the Center Ridge Construction Fund. 

 

Auditor Wilcheck stated yes. 

 

Chairman DeVries asked why the revenues change with each scenario option in capital 

fund improvement. 

 

Auditor Wilcheck stated fifteen percent less the dollars allocated to debt service each 

year is what is available for capital.  He noted that he conservatively budgeted two 

percent growth. 

 

Chairman DeVries asked what the typical growth was. 

 

Auditor Wilcheck stated usually around three percent but due to some changes on the 

state level, he was uncertain what this year would look like.   

 

Chairman DeVries asked Chief Reese where the discussion was at with trade in values.    

 

Auditor Wilcheck stated in 2021 or 2022 sale proceeds can come back in to pay notes. 

 

Mayor Gillock thinks that option three is the best option.  He thought it would be cleaner 

to pay the interest on BANS.  He asked Chief Reese if the City would look at E1 on the 

pumper trade in or would it be listed on EBay or something similar. 

 

Chief Reese stated he would not purchase a new ladder truck from a company unless they 

would take the old ladder truck.   He noted that E1 won’t take it, but the other two 

companies he is talking to will take it. 

 

Chairman DeVries asked if there was a discount for purchasing two vehicles at once with 

the other companies he was talking to. 

 

Chief Reese stated yes for a total of $16,000-$20,000 savings, plus the trade-in. 

 

Chairman DeVries asked if both vehicles were in service currently. 

 

Chief Reese stated yes.   

 



03.18.2019 Finance minutes   3 

 

 

Chairman DeVries asked if any members of Committee had any discussion or questions. 

 

Councilman Boose asked Auditor Wilcheck if the sale of the truck would help pay down 

debt instead of putting the proceeds back in the General Fund. 

 

Auditor Wilcheck stated the proceeds usually go back to the fund where the item was 

purchased. 

 

Councilman Boose stated he just wanted to make sure he heard it correctly.    

 

Chairman DeVries asked if there would be additional training needed with the purchase 

of the trucks. 

 

Chief Reese stated training is included with the purchase of the trucks.  The only 

additional cost may be for the transferring of radios, but the cost will be minimal.   

 

Councilman Boose asked if the other two companies are similar in cost. 

 

Chief Reese stated they may be $1,000 or $2,000 less but substantially the same.  Chief 

Reese added he felt the value would be better this year with the ladder truck. 

 

Councilman Boose asked if the other companies he is talking to are offering the same 

with trade-in value. 

 

Chief Reese stated E1 was giving a trade-in of $150,000 without even appraising it.  He 

is not sure yet with the other two companies. 

 

Councilman Boose stated it was mentioned that in option three, there would be two years 

of interest.  He asked if it was one or two years. 

 

Auditor Wilcheck stated in 2020 and 2021 it would be half a year interest at $15,000 and 

it assumes $1 million. 

 

Councilman Boose asked in the debt service payments, other than what the City knows 

today for current and future debt service payments - is there anything else included in the 

forecast.  He further asked if any assumptions were calculated in. 

 

Auditor Wilcheck stated he did not factor in any new debt against the income tax.  He 

further stated he did look at capital projects.  He also stated that there is no funding for 

the results of the facilities study.     

 

Councilman Boose stated the construction of the water tower is under 2024 and further 

asked if that was pushed out. 

 



03.18.2019 Finance minutes   4 

 

 

Auditor Wilcheck stated that was the original timing but reminded Councilman Boose 

that some of the funding comes from specific water funds. 

 

Chairman DeVries stated this has no impact on the current paramedic levy coming up. He 

further stated he likes option three which allows for adjustments and gives the City more 

flexibility. 

 

Councilman Abens stated he is looking at option three which gives the City flexibility. 

 

Chairman DeVries asked for any questions from the Administration.   

 

Auditor Wilcheck stated with option three, the City can issue notes in the current bond 

sale or wait until a later time.  He thought it was better to do it now.  The ordinance will 

come on April 1
st
.  Bond counsel stated the City will have six months to obligate the 

dollars. 

 

Councilman Boose asked if the City would still be paying $45,000 in interest. 

 

Auditor Wilcheck stated the interest will still be $45,000. 

 

Councilman Boose stated the City will still be paying principal. 

 

Auditor Wilcheck stated if it is bonded, yes and further added the City would not have to 

pull resources out of General Fund.  If the City has the resources, it can pay the debt 

earlier.  Auditor Wilcheck also noted another advantage is when the two vehicles are 

sold; the dollars can be applied to the notes.    

 

Chairman DeVries asked if any other members of Council had any comments or 

questions.  No discussion was offered. 

 

Chairman DeVries asked if anyone in the audience had any comments or questions.  No 

discussion was offered. 

 

Moved by Boose and seconded by Abens to recommend City Council consider for 

approval option three. 

 

A voice vote was taken and the motion carried. 

Yes – 3  No – 0  

 

Chairman DeVries adjourned the meeting at 7:01 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 



03.18.2019 Finance minutes   5 

 

 

These minutes were approved on _________________________________. 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Tara L. Peet, MMC 

Assistant Clerk of Council 


























